
Bond Oversight Committee Meeting Minutes 
June 26, 2013 

 
 
The June 26, 2013 Bond Oversight Committee Meeting of the Pleasant Hill Recreation & Park 
District (PHR&PD) was called to order by Committee Chair Norman Vanhole at 6:02 p.m. in the 
General Manager’s Office at the Administration Office. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
Committee Chair Norm Vanhole led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
ROLL CALL 
MEMBERS PRESENT:  Hagopian, Hirst, Jeffrey, Simons, Vanhole, Vardas 

  
ABSENT:                               Gorham 
 
STAFF & BOARD PRESENT:  Blair 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
There was no public comment.   
 
REVIEW AND APPROVE MINUTES OF MAR. 21, 2013 MEETING (ACTION) 
Upon motion of Hagopian/Vardas, the Committee approved the minutes of March 21, 2013. 
 
REVIEW AND APPROVE MINUTES OF APR. 17, 2013 MEETING (ACTION) 
Upon motion of Hirst/Jeffrey, the Committee approved the minutes of April 17, 2013. 
 
SUBCOMMITTEE REPORTS 
Chair Vanhole opened this item for discussion and he then requested the date of the next BOC 
meeting. Member Simons reported the next BOC meeting date would be September 19, 2013. 
Simons stated this is the meeting the Semi-Annual Report as of June 30, 2013 would be 
submitted for review and approval by the committee members. Simons also indicated a due 
date of August 25th for Subcommittee Reports with a date of September 9th for the completion 
of the first draft of the Semi-Annual Report. Chair Vanhole confirmed with Accounting 
Supervisor Blair the Conference Room would be available for the next BOC meeting. 
 
Member Jeffrey asked staff when the general ledger would be available for the fiscal year-end. 
Accounting Supervisor Blair responded he hoped the general ledger would be closed by the end 
of August 2013. Blair also announced he would be on vacation during the week of the next BOC 
meeting and he would have another District staff person attend the meeting in his absence. 
Member Jeffrey stated the Audit Subcommittee would not have sufficient time to review all 
expenses for the six month period. Accounting Blair suggested the review include the expenses  
received as of a certain date with a final subsequent wrap up for fiscal year end noted in the 
December 31, 2013 six month report. Member Simons indicated she thought this occurred last 
year due to final Measure E expenses increasing slightly for the fiscal year end.  Member Jeffrey 
asked when the District accountant’s (audit) report would be completed and Accounting 
Supervisor Blair responded the completion date of the audit report is scheduled for late October 
or November. Member Jeffrey commented the Audit Subcommittee would have to go back and 
update the Spreadsheet (C-1) for additional invoices paid after the initial review period.  



 

Bond Oversight Committee Meeting Minutes – April 17, 2013 
         

 

2 

OLD BUSINESS 
Under this item, Chair Vanhole announced Member Jeffrey had some old business for 
discussion. Member Jeffrey stated his report was verbal only and he wanted to report on what 
the Audit Subcommittee did and a couple of things that had been done differently.  In May, 
Member Jeffrey reported the Audit Subcommittee continued the December 2012 examination of 
236 invoices with the examination of an additional 146 invoices. These bond fund outlays were 
deemed appropriate Measure E funded costs as a result of this review.  In addition, Member 
Jeffrey indicated the analysis of Measure E expenditures recorded in the General Ledger for the 
period of January through March 2013 had been completed and how it was performed on a 
quarterly basis rather than on a six month basis since it would be much harder to do. Member 
Jeffrey also stated the Measure E Expenditure Payments Spreadsheet (Attachment C-1) had 
been updated and he handed out copies to the members after his discussion.  
 
Member Jeffrey continued his report by stating in June the Audit Subcommittee compared the 
cumulative total Measure E expenditures listed on the District’s excel spreadsheet record of 
bond fund payments with the corresponding total payments shown in the general ledger since 
the inception of all project work. Member Jeffrey further indicated this review had not been 
completed since last June 2011. Jeffrey stated the result of this review was favorable with 
minor variances for each test period as follows: June 30, 2012 was a difference of $76, 
December 31, 2012 was a difference rounded to $450 and March 31, 2013 was a difference of 
about $1,150. 
 
Member Jeffrey handed out and gave an overview of the pie charts on the completed projects 
as prepared by the Audit Subcommittee. Member Jeffrey reported the last work effort included 
the analysis of Measure E project planned outlays with planned funding sources for selected 
dates of 2010, 2011, 2012, and 2013. Jeffrey handed out this summary and concluded this 
analysis resulted in a very small variance. 
 
There was a brief discussion by the BOC on the overview of the pie charts and then Chair 
Vanhole thanked Member Jeffrey for his overall report. 
 
Chair Vanhole requested from staff a status of the fundraising efforts towards the fixtures, 
furniture and equipment needs for the Measure E projects. Accounting Supervisor Blair reported 
the Little House had been sold for $389,000 and the proceeds were earmarked for use at the 
Community Center. Blair further indicated the collection activity has matched the expenditures 
to-date for all projects. 
 
Member Jeffrey confirmed with Accounting Supervisor Blair the funding sources allocated 
towards the Measure E projects including $28 million in bond proceeds, $200,000 in earned 
interest income and a total of $1.4 million in Measure WW park funds. In summary, Member 
Jeffrey concluded Measure E projects should be completed with sufficient funding in place and 
would deplete all Measure E funds. 
 
Chair Vanhole asked for an update on the Community Center construction progress. Accounting 
Supervisor Blair responded there was some concern over not having sufficient manpower at the 
site but this had picked up last week. Vice-Chair Vardas asked if CSI thought the project was on 
schedule and Accounting Supervisor Blair indicated there was a concern a week ago and now 
the additional manpower should resolve this issue. 
 
Member Jeffrey commented the Pleasant Oaks Park construction project was in full swing with 
all the dirt moving around. 



 

Bond Oversight Committee Meeting Minutes – April 17, 2013 
         

 

3 

Member Simons asked if the Senior Center and Teen Center were now complete. Accounting 
Supervisor responded the HVAC system had some problems that were being worked on and 
Vice-Chair Vardas indicated the seniors complained at times how cold it can be in the facility. 
 
Member Jeffrey asked about the acoustics work at the Senior Center and Vice-Chair Vardas 
indicated there had been a significant improvement especially in the Chateau room. 
 
Vice-Chair Vardas asked about rentals at the Senior Center and Accounting Supervisor Blair 
responded that through May rental income for the Senior Center was $31,000 compared to a 
fiscal year budget of $42,000. Blair stated $5,000 was earned in May and Member Jeffrey 
commented only $11,000 was needed to meet the budget goal. It was determined this rental 
income was good considering the facility had not been opened for a full year. 
 
Member Jeffrey commented he had updated the listing of all change orders to date. 
 
Chair Vanhole asked staff if the District Board had considered holding a joint special meeting 
with the BOC to address some concerns the Chair had been receiving from the public. 
Accounting Supervisor Blair responded the Board considered the request at the last board 
meeting. However, by the time all board members looked at their calendars, it was mentioned 
when a meeting could be scheduled in the next six months the projects would be completed. 
Blair noted he had attended most meetings and to-date there has been no public concerns 
brought to the Board’s attention. Blair mentioned any public concerns would be best served by 
addressing these concerns directly to the Board.  
 
NEW BUSINESS 
Chair Vanhole asked if there was any new business and he then commented he would work 
with Member Jeffrey on the formatting of the pie charts for a special report. Member Simons 
agreed a special report with pie-charts would be nice but thought it should be prepared when 
all Measure E projects have been completed. Member Simons suggested this report be used to 
inform the public on what was completed as compared to what was promised in the original 
ballot measure. For an example the Rehab Bathrooms project had been deleted due to funding 
needs for the other projects. Member Simons commented the pie charts should include 
information on how projects were funded and to keep the report simple without too much 
detail. Simons also commented she hoped the District would help with this special informational 
report since she did not have the computer capabilities to make it all look pretty. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
Committee Chair Vanhole adjourned the meeting at 6:49 p.m.  
 
 
________________________________ 
Marie Simons, Committee Secretary 


